
ONE HUNDRED 
AND SIXTY-THIRD MEETING 

Held at Lake Success, New York, 
on Thursday, 4 March 1948, at 3 p.m. 

President : Mr. Charles MALIK (Lebanon) 

88. Reports of the specialized agencies 
(E/648, E/681, E/456, E/456/ Add.1/ 
Rev.1, E/461, Ej461/Add.1, E/586, 
E/586/Add.1, E/586/Add.2, E/593, 
E/597 and E/597/Add.1) 

The PRESIDENT noted that the meeting of the 
Conunittee of the Whole, which had been recom
mended by the Committee on Matters relating 
to Co-ordination (E /681), had been adjourned, 
on a motion by the United States of America, 
seconded by the U.S.S.R., so that the Economic 
and Social Council could meet in plenary session. 

At the invitation· of the President, the representa
tives of the International Labour Organisation, the 
Food and Agriculture Organization of the United 
Nations, the United Nations Educational, Scientific 
and Cultural Organization, the International Civil 
Aviation Organization and the Interim Commission 
of the World Health Organization took their seats 
at the Council table. 

Mr. THORP .(United States of America) noted 
that for the first time the Economic and Social 
Council was able to consider the work of the 
specialized agencies in some detail. It was thus 
fulfilling one of its most important functions. 
The reports submitted by the specialized agencies 
constituted a major link between the Council and 
the agencies. Since the Council had not given 
the specialized agencies any indication of the 
material to be included in the reports, conunents 
made during the discussion were not intended as 
criticisms but rather as suggestions to orient the 
agencies in the future. · 

The reports had already been discussed in detail 
by the Conunittee on Matters relating to Co
ordination, hut the United States delegation 
wished to make general comments on each of 
the reports. 

Food and Agriculture Organization of the United 
Nations (E /597 and E f597 /Add.1) · 

While FAO had been designed primarily as an 
agency to meet long-range world agricultural 
problems, it had also recognized certain urgent 
food problems resulting from the war. The 
United States strongly supported such action. 

In addition, F AO had continuously considered 
the problem of its own organization and had taken 
steps to strengthen its own machinery.· 

It had prepared useful surveys, provided tech
nical assistance, and engaged in co-operative 
efforts with other specialized agencies, with the 
Department of Economic Affairs of the United 

CENT SOiXANTE-TROISIEME 
SEANCE 

Tenue a Lake Success, New-York, 
le jeudi 4 mars 1948, a 15 heures 

President: M. Charles MALIK (Liban) 

88. Rapports des institutions specialisees 
(E/648, E/681, E/456, Ej456/Add.1/ 
Rev.1, E/461; E/461/Add.1, E/586, 
Ej586/Add.1, E/586/Add.2, E/593, 
E/597 et E/597/ Add.1) 

Le PRESIDENT indique que Ia seance du Conseil 
siegeant eil comite, projetee sur la recommandation 
du Comite charge des questions de coordination 
(E /681), a ete ajournee sur une motion du repre
sentant des Etats-Unis d'Amerique, appuyee par 
le representant de I'U.R.S.S., de sorte que le 
Conseil economique et social pent tenir seance 
pleniere. 

Sur ['invitation du President, les representants de 
['Organisation internationale du Travail, de ['Orga
nisation des Nations Unies pour ['alimentation et 
['agriculture, de ['Organisation des Nations Unies 
pour l'education, la science et la culture, de ['Orga
nisation de l' aviation civile internationale et de .la 
Commission interimaire de ['Organisation mondiale 
de la sante, prennent place a la table du Conseil. 

M. THORP (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) remarque 
que c'est Ia premiere fois que le Conseil economique 
et social est en mesure d'etudier en detail I'acti
vite des institutions specialisees. II remplit ainsi 
une de ses fonctions les p~us importantes. Les 
rapports presentes par les institutions specialisees 
constituent un lien important entre le Conseil et 
ces institutions. Comme le Conseil n'a donne aux 
institutions specialisees aucune indication sur le 
genre de renseignements qu 'il desirait trouver dans 
les rapports, il ne faut pas considerer conune des 
critiques les observations qui seront faites au 
cours de la discussion, mais plutot les regarder 
comme des suggestions destinees a guider les insti
tutions a l'avenir. 

Le Comite charge des questions de coordination 
a deja examine ces rapports dans le detail. Toute
fois, la delegation des Etats-Unis tient a faire 
quelques observations generales sur chacun d' eux. 

Organisation des Nations Unies pour ['alimentation 
et ['agriculture (FAO) (E/597 et E/597 fAdd.1) 

Bien que la F AO ait ete essentiellement creee 
pour resoudre les problemes agricoles mondiaux a 
long terme, elle a voulu aussi s'occuper de certains 
problemes alimentaires urgents qui se posaient 
du fait de la guerre. Les Etats-Unis approuvent 
vivement cette attitude. 

De plus, la F AO a constanunent etudie le pro
hleme de sa propre organisation et a pris des 
mesures pour en renforcer le mecanisme. 

Elle a procede a des etudes utiles, fourrii !'assis
tance de ses experts, .et collabore avec d'autres 
institutions specialisees, ·le Departement des 

_questions economiques de !'Organisation des 

347 

__j 



Nations, and with the Economic Commission for 
Europe. The United States favoured co-opera
tive action. 

It was important to take note of the way in 
which FAO drew the Economic and Social Coun
cil's attention to problems outside its field yet 
affecting its field and requiring action by the 
Council. It was to be hoped that other specialized 
agencies would similarly bring such problems 
before the Council. 

The United States would like the reports of 
FAO, and to some extent those of other agencies, 
to give more information on priorities of the 
various projects undertaken, regular statistical 
material and continuity of technical publications, 
relations between the regional activities of FAO 
and the activities of United Nations regional com
missions. Close co-operation was needed. 

International Civil Aviation Organization (E /456 
and E /456 /Add .. 1) 

Three reports 1 constituting a summary record 
of the activities of ICAO and its predecessors had 
been submitted. It was clear from the reports 
that much progress regarding the safety and 
efficiency of international air transport had been 
made, but a report of past activities was not 
sufficient to give the whole picture. More ana
lytical reports were desirable, and future reports 
might include the relationship between air naviga
tion and new problems being created such as 
frontier restrictions, trade barriers and joint 
action by governments on technical aspects of 
aii: navigation. 

While ICAO. had already established relations 
with. the Universal Postal Union and the Inter
national Meteorological Organization, co-opera
tion with the International Telecommunication 
Union, the World Health Organization and other 
agencies should be considered. 

United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural 
· Organization (E /461) 

The United States representative noted that 
UNESCO had made considerable progress but 
that its report gave no indication of its relations 
with other agencies. Since the field of UNESCO 
was not defined in terms of subject matter, co
ordination might prove difficult and the problem 
of duplication might arise. The Hylean Amazon 
project undertaken by UNESCO required the 
services of an. expert on tropical diseases, yet 
there was no indication in the report of co-opera
tion with the World Health Organization. Again, 
UNESCO was granting financial assistance total
ling $U.S. 250,000 to scientific unions yet there 
was no indication of the fields in which those 
unions were working although there was a pos-

1 Council , document E j456 contains two reports of 
ICAO: Report of the Interim Council (document No. 4023-
Al-P /3) and Resolutions adopted by the First Assembly 
(document No. 4411-Al-P /45). 

Nations Unies et avec la Commission economique 
pour l'Europe. Les Etats-Unis sont partisans de la 
cooperation. 

Il importe de noter la fagon dont la FAO a 
attire !'attention du Conseil economique et social 
sur des questions qui ne rentraient pas dans son 
domaine, mais qui y touchaient et qui exigeaient 
done !'intervention du Conseil. Il faut esperer 
que d'autres institutions specialisees porteront 
de meme a !'attention du Conseil des problemes 
les interessant a un degre semblable. 

Les Etats-Unis voudraient que les rapports de 
la FAO, et, dans une certaine mesure, ceux des 
autres institutions specialisees, precisent davan
tage l' ordre de priorite des divers programmes 
entrepris, qu'ils fournissent une documentation 
statistique suivie, des indications sur la conti
nuite des publications techniques, ainsi que des 
renseignements sur les relations entre l'activite 
regionale de la FAO et celle des commissions 
regionales de !'Organisation des Nations Unies. 
Une collaboration etroite s'impose. 

Organisation de l'aviation civile infernationale 
(E /456 et E /456 /Add.1 jRev.l) 

L'OACI a presente trois rapports 1 qui donnent 
un aper<;u de son activite et de celle de ses prede
cesseurs. Il ressort nettement de ces rapports que 
l'on a fait de grands progres en ce qui concerne 
la securite et l'efficacite des transports aeriens 
internationaux ; toutefois, un rapport sur l'acti
vite passee ne suffit pas pour donner un tableau 
complet de la situation. Il serait desirable d'avoir 
des rapports plus analytiques, et les rapports 
ulterieurs pourraient indiquer les repercussions 
sur la navigation aerienne de problemes nouveaux 
qui se posent, · tels que les restrictions au passage 
des frontieres, les entraves au commerce et I' action 
commune des gouvernements en ce qui concerne 
1es aspects techniques de la navigation aerienne. 

L'OACI est deja entree en relation avec l'Union 
postale universelle et !'Organisation meteorolo
gique internationale, mais il faudrait aussi envi
sager sa cooperation avec l'Union internationale 
des telecommunications, !'Organisation mondiale 
de la sante et d'autres institutions. 

Organisation des Nations Unies pour ['education, 
la science et la culture (E /461) 

Le representant des Etats-Unis fait observer 
que !'UNESCO a accompli des progres notables. 
mais que son rapport ne donne aucune indication 
de ses relations avec les autres institutions. Du fait 
que le domaine de l'UNESCO n'est pas defini 
quant aux matieres dont cette organisation doit 
s'occuper, la coordination peut s'averer difficile 
et il risque de se produire des cas de double emploi. 
Le projet pour l'Amazonie hyleenne entrepris par 
l'UNESCO comporte la participation d'un expert 
en maladies tropicales; or, le rapport ne mentionne 
pas de cooperation avec !'Organisation mondiale 
de la sante. L'UNESCO accorde a des groupements 
scientifiques une aide financiere se montant a 
250.000 dollars, mais on ne trouve aucune indi-

1 Le document E j456 du Conseil est constitue par deux 
documents de l'OACI : Rapport du Conseil interimaire· 
(document No 4023-Al-P /3) et Resolutions adoptees par /a
premiere Assembtee (document N° 4411-Al-P /45). 

348 



sibility of overlapping with the work of other 
specialized agencies. · Neither did the report give 
any details of the work of UNESCO's three field 
science co-operation offices. 

It was possible that effective co-ordination with 
other agencies was going on, but the record was 
not clear on the point. 

There was no definite report on the way in 
which UNESCO had acted on recommendations 
of the General Assembly or the Economic and 
Social Council. No report had been furnished 
regarding activities of direct interest to the Com
mission on the Status of Women; the Council had 
no idea of UNESCO's role in preparing for the 
conference on freedom of information. 

The United States urged all specialized agencies 
to submit reports regularly on the implementation 
of United Nations resolutions and recommenda-
tions. · 

Interim Commission of the World Health Organiza~ 
lion (E /593) 

It must be remembered that the World Health 
Organization was not yet a full-fledged specialized 
agency but only an interim commission. Its 
report nevertheless indicated niany activities and 
the establishment of many technic~! commissions. 

The Interim Commission had taken prompt 
action during the outbreak. of cholera in Egypt 
and was conducting campaigns against tuber
culosis and malaria. 

It had . co-operated constructively with the 
United Nations International Children's Emer
gency Fund and the Social Commission, had con
cluded an agreement with the Food and Agricul
ture Organization and was working on agreements 
with other specialized agencies, but it was not 
clear how satisfactory its relations were with 
UNESCO. Reports should be submitted to the 
Economic Council in due course. 

The United States wished to congratulate the 
Interim Commission on the very constructive 
work it had promoted. . 

International Labour Organisation (E /586, E /586 f 
Add.l and E /586 /Add.2) 

· The report of ILO gave an excellent compre
hensive review of past activities. Future reports 
would not require the same background detail but 
should emphasize current and future projects. 

The International Labour Organisation had 
organized industrial committees since the war 
and the United States hoped. an evaluation of 
experience with those committees would be fur~ 
nished. 

349 

cation du champ d'etude de ces groupements, bien 
qu'il y ait la une possibilite d' empietement sur 
les travaux d'autres institutions specialisees. Le 
rapport ne donne pas non plus le moindre detail 
sur l'reuvre des trois bureaux loc;aux de coope
ration scientifique que !'UNESCO a etablis. 

Il se peut qu'une coordination existe en realite 
avec d~autres institutions, mais le rapport ne le 
dit pas nettement. 

Le rapport ne fournit aucune. indication pre:. 
cise sur les mesures prises par l'UNESCO en execu
tion des recommandations de l' Assemblee general'e 
et du Conseil economiqlie et social. Aucun rensei
gnement n'a ete fourni sur les activites qui inte
ressent directement la Commission de la condi
tion de la femme. Le Conseil ne peut' se faire aucune 
idee du r61e joue par l'UNESCO dans la prepara
tion de la Conference des Nations Unies ·sur la 
liberte de !'information. 

Les Etats-Unis demandent instamment a toutes 
les institutions specialisees de presenter regulie
rement des rapports sur la mise en reuvre des 
resolutions et des recommandations de !'Orga
nisation des Nations Unies. 

Commission interimaire de ['Organisation mondiale 
de la sante (E /593). 

Il ne faut pas oublier que !'Organisation mon
diale de la sante n' est pas encore une institution 
specialisee enti<~rement constituee et qu'il ne 
s'agit, pour l'in~tant, que d'une commission inte
timaire. Neanmoins, son rapport indique qu'elle 
a entrepris de multiples activites et etabli de 
nombreuses commissions techniques .. 

La Commission interimaire a agi avec promp
titude pendant l'epidemie de cholera qui a eclate 
en Egypte, et.elle mene campagne contre la tuber
culose et Ia malaria. 

Elle a coopere de fa~,;on constructive . avec le 
Fonds international de secours a l'enfance et la 
Commission des questions sociales ; elle a conclu 
un accord avec !'Organisation pour !'alimentation 
et !'agriculture et prepare des accords avec d'autres 
institutions specialisees. Mais le rapport n'in
dique pas clairement dans quelle mesure Ies rela
tions qu'elle entretient avec !'UNESCO sont 
satisfaisantes. Il co,nviendra de presenter des 
rapports au Conseil economique et social en temps 
utile. · 

Les Etats-Unis tiennent a feliciter la Commission 
interimaire de l'amvie tres constructive dont elle 
s'est faite l'initiatrice. 

Organisation internationale du Travail (E /586, 
E /586 JAdd.l et E /586 /Add.2) 

Le rapport de !'Organisation internationale du 
Travail presente un tableau excellent et complet 
de son activite passee. A l'avenir, les rapports 
n'auront pas besoin d'etablir avec autant de details 
la genese des travaux et devront s'etendre surtout 
sur les programmes en cours d'execution ou sur 
ceux qu'on envisage d'entreprendre. 

Depuis la guerre, !'Organisation internationale 
du Travail a organise des commissions d'industrie, 
et les Etats-Unis esperent que l'on donnera une 
appreciation des resultats obtenus grace a ces 
commissions. 



the organization was to be commended for its 
prompt action on the question of freedom of 
association. 

Mr. Thorp reminded the Council that all his 
remarks were intended not as criticisms but rather 
as indications of the emphasis and the kind of 
information wanted by the Economic and Social 
Council in future reports from the· specialized 
agencies. Clearly it was impossible for the Coun
cil to undertake activities in the fields covered 
by the specialized agencies. Nevertheless the 
Council had the responsibility of reviewing the 
work of those agencies and stressing the need for 
co-operative effort by all the agencies and by the 
Member States. 

Mr. CAMPOS (Brazil) felt that the Economic and 
Social Council had completed its organizational 
stage and was prepared to consider the reports of 
the specialized agencies. Articles 63 and 64 of 
the Charter laid down a substantial task for the 
Council and the reports of the specialized agencies 
opened wide vistas in international economic and 
social fields. 

The Council had grown and multiplied to form 
various subsidiary organs and agencies. There 
was criticism from some quarters that it had over
grown and overreached itself ; others believed it 
was better to try too much than to do too little. 
The Council would have to strike a happy medium 
between realism and idealism by effective co
ordination of the work of the various agencies. 
Successful achievement by the United Nations 
in promoting peace through social and economic 
work was particularly important in view of the 
unhappy poliqcal situation. 

Mr. Campos indicated four principal types of 
action that could profitably be undertaken by 
the Council : recommendations on allocations 
between the various agencies ; recommendations 
to prevent overlapping ; recommendations as to 
priorities ; recommendations as to initiation of 
activities. 

It was unlikely that the Council would be able 
to study the work of the specialized agencies 
thoroughly the first time because of the lack of 
uniformity in the substance and form of the 
various reports. The Committee on Matters 
relating to Co-ordination had considered the 
matter and would establish norms for future 
reports. 

The representative of Brazil wished to make 
some comments on the individual reports of the 
specialized agencies. 

United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural 
Organization (E /461 and E f461fAdd.1) 

Mr. Campos expressed satisfaction at the em
phasis given by UNESCO to the problem of co
ordination with the United Nations ; the General 
Conference of UNESCO in Mexico City had taken 
steps to adhere to United Nations resolutions. 

II y a lieu de feliciter I' organisation de la promp
titude avec laquelle elle a agi au sujet de la ques
tion de la liberte d'association. 

M. Thorp rappelle au Conseil que ses remarques 
ne doivent pas etre considerees comme des cri
tiques; il voudrait plutot que I' on y voie des indi
cations sur !'importance relative et la nature des 
renseignements que le Conseil economique et social 
voudrait trouver dans les rapports ulterieurs des 
institutions specialisees. Il est evident que le 
Conseil ne saurait prendre des mesures dans les 
domaines d'activite des institutions specialisees. 
Toutefois, le Conseil est charge de surveiller l'ac
tivite de ces institutions et de souligner la neces
site d'un effort de cooperation aussi bien de la part 
de toutes institutions que des Etats Membres. 

M. CAMPos (Bresil) estime que le Conseil econo
mique et social a paracheve son organisation et 
qu'il est en mesure d'examiner les rapports des 
institutions specialisees. Aux termes des Articles 63 
et 64 de la Charte, le Conseil doit assumer une 
tache considerable, et les rapports des institutions 
specialisees ouvrent, sur le plan international, de 
vastes perspectives dans le domaine economique 
et le domaine social. 

Le Conseil a cruet s'est multiplie en creant divers 
organes et institutions subsidiaires. D'aucuns 
reprochent au Conseil d'avoir trop grandi et trop 
presume de ses forces ; d'autres estiment qu'il 
vaut mieux essayer d'accomplir trop de choses 
qu'en realiser trop peu. Il faut que le Conseil 
trouve un juste milieu entre le point de vue des 
realistes et celui des idealistes en coordonnant 
effectivement les activites des diverses institu
tions. Si !'Organisation des Nations Unies reussit a 
servir la cause de la paix grace a son action dans 
le domaine ' economique et social, ce sera un 
resultat d'une importance particulh~re, etant donne 
la gravite de la situation politique. 

M. Campos rappelle que !'action du Conseil 
peut s' exercer avec profit so us quatre formes prin
cipales : recommandations concernant la repar
tition des credits entre les diverses institutions ; 
recommandations tendant a empecher le chevau
chement des diverses activites; recommandations 
concernant l'ordre des priorites a accorder; recom
mandations touchant les initiatives a prendre. 

Il est peu probable que le Conseil soit, des 
l'abord, en mesure de faire une etude approfondie 
de l'activite des institutions specialisees, etant 
donne que les divers rapports different quant au 
fond et a la forme. Le Comite charge des questions 
de coordination a etudie la question et il etablira 
des normes pour la redaction des rapports futurs. 

Le representant du Bresil a des observations a 
presenter sur chacun des rapports des institutions 
specialisees. 

Organisation des Nations Unies pour ['education, 
la science et la culture (E /461 et E f461/Add.1) 

M. Campos se declare satisfait de ce que 
!'UNESCO ait attache une grande importance 
au probleme de la coordination avec !'Organisation 
des Nations Unies. La, Conference generale de 
!'UNESCO qui s'est tenue a Mexico a pris des 
mesures en vue de se conformer aux resolutions 
adoptees par !'Organisation des Nations Unies. 

350 



The United Nations Educational, Scientific and 
'Cultural Organization had been criticized for the 
variety and multiplicity of its programmes. It 
had undertaken four principal projects in 1947, 
but its full programme involved about one hun
dred projects of varying scope. 

The Second General Conference in Mexico City 
in 1947 had realistically tried to concentrate the 
activities of UNESCO, but the idealists had 
triumphed. There was no cause for regret or 
criticism of the situation .. A commendable feature 
of its progrm:iune was that unlike other interna
tional organizations UNESCO had not forgotten 
any continent and had not neglected under
developed countries. The Brazilian· Government 
welcomed UNESCO's Hylean Amazon project; 
it hoped that duplication of work on mass com
·munications would be avoided by co-ordination 
between UNESCO and the United Nations Depart
ment of Public Information and United Nations 
Film Board. 

Similarly care should be taken to avoid duplica
tion of efforts between the UNESCO Interna
tional Technical Conference on the Protection of 
Nature and the United Nations Scientific Confer
ence on the Conservation and Utilization of 
Resources, and also between UNESCO's studies 
on the free flow of information and the United 
Nations conference on freedom of information. 

· The report of UNESCO indicated encouraging 
co-operation with the Economic and Social Coun
cil in many studies undertaken by UNESCO at 
the Council's request. 

International Civil Aviation Organization (E /456 
and E /456 /Add.1/Rev.1) 

The questions dealt with by ICAO in its three 
reports to the Economic and Social Council fell 
under three headings : constitutional and general 
policy questions ; technical questions ; and finan
cial questions. 

·· In April 1947, the Interim Commission had 
given way to the permanent organization of ICAO. 
In compliance with article 37 of its Constitution, 
ICAO had worked with various international 
organizations, but the important question of co
ordination with the International Telecommunica
tion Union was still unsettled and should be 
clarified. 

In the technical field, ICAO was concerned with 
questions of standard practices and procedures 
for air transport. · 

The Brazilian delegation wished to draw atten
tion to certain areas involving a possible duplica
tion of work : (1) international double taxation 
(Fiscal Commission) ; (2) maps and charts (Eco
nomic and Social Council) ; (3) standardization of 
units and measurements (International Meteorolo
gical Organization); (4) insurance requirements 
(International Maritime Organization). 

In addition there were other cases when ex
change of information might be helpful. 

On a reproche a !'Organisation des Nations 
Unies pour !'education, la science et la culture la 
variete et la multiplicite des sujets qui constituent 
son programme. En 1947, cette organisation a 
entrepris la realisation de quatre projets princi
paux, mais son progrmnme complet porte sur 
pres de cent projets d'importance diverse. . .. 

EU: 1947, la deuxieme Conference general~, 
tenue it Mexico, s'est efforcee, dans un esprit 
realiste, de limiter les activites de l'UNESCO, 
mais c'est le point de vue des idealistes qui a pre
valu. Il n'y a aucune raison de regretter ou de 
critiquer cet etat de choses. Il y a lieu de feliciter 
l'UNESCO de ce que son programme, a la diffe
rence de celui d'autres organisations internatio
nales, s'etende a tous les continents et ne neglige 
pas les regions insuffismnment develop pees. Le Gou
vernement bresilien accueille avec satisfaction le 
pro jet de I' UNESCO relatif a I' Amazonie hyleenne. 
Il espere que I' on pourra eviter tout double emploi 
en ce qui concerne !'information des masses en 
assurant la coordination entre !'UNESCO et le 
Departement de !'information ainsi que le Conseil 
du cinema de !'Organisation des Nations Unies. 

De meme, il importe; d'eviter tout double 
emploi entre la Conference technique interna
tiortale sur la protection de la nature, rennie par 
!'UNESCO, et la Conference des Nations Unies 
sur la conservation et !'utilisation des ressources 
naturelles, ainsi qu'entre les etudes effectuees 
par !'UNESCO sur la libre circulation des infor
mations et la Conference des Nations Unies sur 
la liberte de !'information. 

· Il ressort du rapport de l'UNESCO que la 
cooperation de cette organisation avec le Conseil 
economique et social se presente sous des auspices 
tres favorables, l'UNESCO ayant entrepris un 
grand nombre d'etudes a la demande du Conseil. 

Organisation de l' aviation civile internationale 
(E /456 et E /456 /Add.1 JRev.1) 

Les questions que traite l'OACI dans les trois 
rapports qu'elle a adresses au Conseil economique 
et social se repartissent en trois rubriques : ques
tions d' ordre constitutionnel et de politique gene
rale pour !'organisation, questions techniques et 
questions financieres. 

Au mois 'd'avril 1947, la Commission interi
maire a ete remplacee par !'organisation perma
nente : l'OACI. Se conformant aux termes de 
l'article 37 de sa Convention, l'OACI a collabore 
avec diverses organisations internationales, mais 
l'importante question de la coordination avec 
l'Union internationale des tE~Iecommunications n'a 
pas encore ete reglee et devra etre mise au point. 

Dans le domaine technique, l'OACI s'occupe 
des questions de la standardisation des methodes 
en matiere de transports aeriens. 

La delegation bresilienne tient a attirer !'atten
tion sur certaines questions pouvant entrainer des 
doubles emplois : 1) double imposition sur le plan 
international (Commission fiscale) ; 2) cartes et 
graphiques (Conseil economique et social) ; 3) stan
dardisation des unites de mesure (Organisation 
meteorologique internationale); 4) regime des assu
rances (Organisation internationale des transports 
maritimes). · 

En outre, il y a certains autres cas dans lesqiiels 
l'echange de renseignements peut etre utile. . 

351 
26 



Food and Agriculture Organization of the United 
Nations (E/597 and E /597 /Add.1) 

The report of FAO showed a welcome expansion 
of its activities. The field of action was vast but 
the geographical scope was not so wide as might 
be desired. Attention was focussed on Europe, 
China and the Near East, but FAO was slow to 
act in Latin America and no regional office or 
programme had yet been established in that area. 
The regrettable lack of geographical balance could 
be traced to the undue predominance of members 
of certain national groups on the staff. 

Co-operation between F AO and ITO on com
modity agreements was very desirable. 

Interim Commission of the World Health Organiza
tion (E f593) 

Brazil shared with China the honour of initiat
ing consideration of an international health orga
nization at San Francisco. The Interim Com
mission had performed satisfactory work, and 
ratification of the Constitution of the World 
Health Organization by the required twenty-six 
governments would add to the prestige of the 
organization. Brazil was pleased to announce 
its ratification of the WHO Constitution on 
18 February 1948. 

It would be desirable for the World Health 
Organization, when it became established per
manently, to take over long-range health prob
lems such as the studies of tuberculosis and 
venereal disease among children which were also 
being conducted by the United Nations Interna-

. tiona! Children's Emergency Fund, a temporary 
organization. 

International Labour Organisation (E /586, E /586 J 
Add.1 and E /586 /Add.2) 

The interest which Brazil took in ILO was 
indicated by the fact that, after leaving the League 
of Nations, it had continued to adhere to the 
labour organization. 

Since industrialization was essential to the 
raising of the Brazilian standard of living, Brazil 
had been alarmed at the recent U.S.S.R. charge 
that ILO had vested interests in highly industria
lized countries and was therefore hostile to indus
trialization of new areas. Investigation had shown 
that the U.S.S.R. charge was not founded since 
ILO's record proved that it encouraged industriali
zation of new areas. 

The PRESIDENT invited the representatives of 
the specialized agencies to take part in the debate 
on their reports at any point. 

Some of the specialized agencies had been in 
existence before the United Nations itself·; some 

Organisation des Nations Unies pour ['alimentation 
et ['agriculture (FAO) (E /597 et E /597 JAdd.1) 

Le rapport de la FAO indique un heureux deve
loppement de l'activite de cette organisation. 
L'action de la FAO porte sur un vaste domaine; 
toutefois, du point de vue geographique, elle n'est 
pas aussi etendue qu'on pourrait le desirer. La 
FAO concimtre son attention sur les besoins de 
!'Europe, de la Chine et du Proche-Orient, mais 
elle montre une certaine lenteur a agir en Amerique 
latine, aucun bureau ou programme regional n'a 
encore ete prevu pour cette region. Cette regret
table absence d'equilibre geographique pourrait 
s'expliquer par la predominance injustifiee, dans 
le personnel de la F AO, de membres de certains 
groupes nationaux. 

La cooperation entre la FAO et !'Organisation 
internationale du commerce en ce qui concerne les 
accords relatifs aux produits de base est extre
mement desirable. 

Commission interimaire de ['Organisation mondiale 
de la sante (E /593) 

Le Bresil partage avec la Chine l'honneur 
d'avoir provoque a San-Francisco !'etude d'un 
projet de creation d'une organisation mondiale 
de la sante. La Commission interimaire a accompli 
un travail satisfaisant et la ratification de la 
Constitution de I' organisation mondiale de la 
sante par vingt-six gouvernements selon les condi
tions requises ajoutera au prestige de !'organisa
tion. Le Bresil a eu le plaisir d'annoncer, le 18 fe
vrier 1948, qu'il ratifiait la Constitution de !'Or
ganisation mondiale de la sante. 

Il est souhaitable que !'Organisation mondiale 
de la sante, des son etablissement . a titre perma
nent, entreprenne l'etude des problemes a long 
terme qui se posent dans le domaine de la sante, 
notamment des etudes sur la tuberculose et les 
maladies veneriennes chez l'enfant, auxquelles 
procede actuellement le Fonds international de 
secours a l'enfance, qui est une organisation 
temporaire. 

Organisation internationale du Travail (E /586, 
E /586 /Add.1 et E /586 JAdd.2) 

L'interet que porte le Bresil a l'OIT s'est mani
feste dans le fait qu'apres s'etre retire de la Societe 
des Nations, le Bresil a continue d'etre membre 
de !'Organisation internationale du Travail. 

Etant donne que !'industrialisation est indis
pensable pour elever ·le niveau d'existence de la 
population bresilienne, le Bresil n'a pas entendu 
sans inquietude la declaration recente dans laquelle 
le representant de l'U.R.S.S. a accuse l'OIT de 
s'interesser surtout aux pays fortement indus
trialises et d'etre par consequent hostile a !'in
dustrialisation de nouvelles regions. Une enquete 
a montre que !'accusation pcirtee par l'U.R.S.S. 
est sans fondement, car si l'on etudie les reali
sations de l'OIT, on peut constater qu'elle a 
encourage l'industralisation de nouvelles regions. 

Le PRESIDENT invite les representants des 
institutions specialisees a prendre part, en toute 
liberte, a la discussion des rapports. 

Certaines institutions specialisees sont plus 
anciennes que !'Organisation des Nations Unies 

352 



had been set up by the United Nations. All of 
them had independent lives but all had to be 
brought into relationship with the United Nations 
in accordance with Article 57 of the Charter. 
Under the agreements with the agencies, and 
in conformity with the Charter, the Council was 
obliged not only to receive the agencies' reports, 
but to criticize the reports constructively, to make 
recommendations and to co-ordinate the agencies' 
activities. 

The fact that debate on the reports came late 
in the session did not mean that the Council was 
in any way lacking in appreciation of their impor
tance. The debate was a major item of the agenda, 
and he hoped that it would make for better rela
tionship between the Council and the agencies 
and among the agencies themselves. 

Mr. SuTcH (New Zealand) agreed with the 
President concerning the importance of the debate. 
The Council's Committee on Matters relating to 
Co-ordination had resolved many of the questions 
of detail in the relations between the Council and 
the agencies, and it was therefore fortunate that 
the debate should have come towards the end of 
the session. 

The United States and Brazilian representa
tives had made several points which he had him
self intended to make~ but some smaller· points 
remained. Like all new organizations, some of 
the specialized agencies had suffered from grow
ing pains. There might have been some over
lapping between . them and some competition 
among them. From then on the emphasis would 
be on collaboration. The Department of Econo
mic Affairs of the Secretadat and similar depart
ments in specialized agencies like the International 
Bank for Reconstruction and Development, the 
Food and Agriculture Organization of the United 
Nations and the International Labour Organisa
tion offered a fruitful field for the kind of collabora
tion he had in mind. 

The New Zealand delegation believed that 
UNESCO was doing vital work, and should be 
given every consideration. Nevertheless, he 
agreed with the Brazilian representative that 
stress should be laid on UNESCO's first objective 
which was the furtherance of peace through 
educational, scientific and cultural channels. At 
its Conference in Mexico City, UNESCO had 
sometimes given the impression of pursuing 
educational, scientific and cultural objectives for 
their own sake. 

The Conference had considered over one hun
dred projects, some of which might prevent action 
being taken by other bodies. For example, an 
international conference of archivists was being 
called. He thought that the archivists of the 
world could promote their own conference. The 
relationship of that Conference to UNESCO's 
aim of promoting peace seemed, in any case, 
somewhat remote. There was a danger that 
UNESCO, in attempting to be a " universal 

elle-meme; d'autres ont ete creees paries Nations 
Unies. Toutes sont independantes, mais il faut 
qu'elles soient reliees a !'Organisation des Nations 
Unies conformement a !'Article 57 de la Charte. 
Aux termes des accords avec les institutions, et 
conformement aux dispositions de la Charte, le 
Conseil est tenu, non seulement de recevoir les 
rapports des institutions, mais de faire une critique 
constructive de ces rapports, de formuler des 
recommandations et de coordonner l'activite des 
diverses institutions. 

Le fait que la discussion des rapports vient a 
l'ordre du jour en fin de session ne. veut pas dire 
que le Conseil meconnaisse de quelque maniere 
que ce soit !'importance de ces rapports. Le present 
debat est un des principaux points de l'ordre du 
jour, et le President espere qu'il contribuera a 
ameliorer encore les relations entre le Conseil et les 
institutions, ainsi que les rapports entre les insti
tutions elles-memes. 

M. SuTcH (Nouvelle-Zelande) reconna!t avec 
le President !'importance de la presente discus
sion. Le Comite charge des questions de coordi
nation a resolu bon nombre des questions de detail 
concernant les relations entre le Conseil et les 
institutions - il est done heureux que cette dis-
cussion ait lieu en fin de session. · 

Les representants des Etats-Unis et du Bresil 
ont presente plusieurs observations que M. Sutch 
se proposait lui-meme de faire, mais il reste encore 
plusieurs remarques de moindre importance a for
muler. Comme toutes les organisations nouvelles, 
certaines des institutions specialisees ont traverse 
des crises de croissance. II se peut qu'il y ait eu 
des chevauchements d'activites ainsi qu'une 
certaine rivalite entre elles. Desormais, c'est sur 
la collaboration qu'il conviendra d'insister. Le 
Departement des questions economiques du Secre
tariat et les departements correspondants d'insti
tutions specialisees, tels que la Banque interna
tionale pour la reconstruction et le developpement, 
!'Organisation des Nations Unies pour !'alimen
tation et !'agriculture et !'Organisation interna
tionale du Travail offrent un terrain propice a la 
collaboration telle que !'envisage M. Sutch. 

La delegation neo-zelandaise estime que les 
travaux de !'UNESCO sont d'importance essen
tielle et qu'il faut accorder a cette organisation 
t6ute !'attention qu'elle merite. Cependant, il 
reconnait avec le representant du Bresil qu'il fau
drait insister sur le but primordial de !'UNESCO, 
qui est de favoriser la paix grace a une action 
dans les domaines de I' education, de la science et de 
la culture. Au cours de la conference qu'elle a tenue 
a Mexico, !'UNESCO a parfois donne !'impression 
de s'interesser a !'evolution dans le domaine de 
I' education, de la science et de la culture a des fins 
purement gratuites. 

Pendant cette conference, plus de cent projets 
ont ete examines et il se pourrait que certains de 
ces projets entravent d'autres organes dans leur 
action. C'est ainsi, par exemple, que !'UNESCO 
est en train de convoquer une conference inter
nationale d'archivistes. Est-ce que les archivistes 
du monde ne peuvent pas organiser leur propre 
conference ? Les rapports que cette conference 
peut avoir avec le but de !'UNESCO - qui est de 
favoriser la paix - paraissent assez lointains. 

353 



mother" Of worthy projects, might be assuming 
the fmictions of weB-established non-governmental 
organiZations. 

· .. There were also instances where there seemed 
to be a danger of UNESCO's work overlapping 
that of United Nations organs. Under UNESCO's 
guidance an enquiry had been held into the philo
sophical principles underlying human rights. 
That was primarily a subject for the Commission 
on Human Rights. In the matter of education 
on the ·principles of the United Nations, it was not 
always . clear what fields should be left to the 
United Nations Department of Public Informa
tion and what to UNESCO. The respective 
functions of the United Nations and of UNESCO 
in radio and film education, for example, should 
be clearly defined. 

There were similar dangers of overlapping be
tween the specialized agencies themselves. The 
International Children's Emergency Fund, FAO, 
UNESCO, and probably also ILO, were all operat
ing in the field of child welfare. Possibly each 
agency was considering different aspects of the 
subject, but that was obviously a fruitful field 
~or co-operation. 

The International Children's Emergency Fund, 
an emergency organization, was circulating en
quirit~s about dairy-herd populations to govern
ments in the Far East. It was no doubt essential 
that the Fund should know what supplies of milk 
would be available for children. In the long run, 
however, that investigation was within the compe
tence of the Food and Agriculture Organization. 
The Fund·was also carrying on an anti-tuberculosis 
campaign in Europe in collaboration with the 
World Health Organization. In th~ future that 
campaign would more properly fall within the 
scope of the World Health Organization alone. 

Miss WITTEVEEN (Netherlands) observed that 
the Netherlands delegation had stated its views 
fully at the UNESCO Conference in Mexico City. 
It was the delegation's opinion that there was a 
risk of dispersion of UNESCO's efforts. UNESCO 
·had taken up .a great many projects, some of which 
were not. urgent and could have been set aside 
for future action. Many countries could ill afford 
the foreign currency UNESCO required, and many, 
as Professor Huxley had already pointed out, 
found it difficult to provide competent personnel 
for a multiplicity of projects. 

· The activities of UNESCO should be prob
lems. essential to the furtherance of the United 
Nations' aims and it should establish priorities 
on project~ in. collaboration with the United Na
tions and the other specialized agencies, remember
ing also. such non-governmental· organizations as 
the International Bureau of Education at Geneva. 

She agreed with the United States nipresenta'
tive that there could be closer collaboration be-

On peut craindre que !'UNESCO, en voulant 
assurer le patronage uriiversel de tous les nobles 
projets, n'usurpe les fonctions . d'organisations 
non goiivernementales bien etablies. 

Dans certains cas egalement, il semble que les 
travaux de !'UNESCO risquent de faire double 
emploi avec ceux d'organes des Nations Unies. 
Sous les auspices de !'UNESCO, une enquete a 
ete organisee au sujet des principes philosophiques 
sur lesquels se fondent les droits de l'homme. C'est 
la un sujet qui interesse au premier chef Ia Com
mission des droits de l'homme. En ce qui concerne 
I' enseignenient dans les ecoles des principes. des 
Nations Unies, on n'a pas toujours precise nett~ 
ment Ies domaines qu'il convient de laisser au 
Departement de !'information des Nations Unies 
et ceux qu'il faut reserver a !'UNESCO. C'est · 
ainsi qu'il faudrait definir clairement les fonc
tions respectives de !'Organisation des Nations 
Unies et de !'UNESCO dans le domaine de !'edu-
cation par la radio et par le cinema. . 

Il existe des dangers analogues · de double 
emploi entre les institutions specialisees elles
memes. Le Fonds international de secours a.· 
l'enfance, la FAO, !'UNESCO et probablement 
aussi l'OI'f s'occupent toutes de Ia protection de 
l'enfance. Il est possible que chaque institution 
s'attache a un aspect different du probleme, mais 
ce probleme offre de toute evidence un terrain 
propice a Ia cooperation. 

Le Fonds international de secours a l'enfance, 
organisation creee pour repondi:e a une situation 
critique, fait distribuer aux gouvernements de 
!'Extreme-Orient des questionnaires relatifs aux 
troupeaux de vaches laitieres. Il est certes essen tiel 
que le Fonds sache quelles sont les reserves de 
lait dont on dispose pour les enfants ; mais en der-:
niere analyse, il s'agit Ia d'une question qui inte• 
resse proprement !'Organisation pour !'alimen
tation et !'agriculture. Le FISE mene egalement 
une campagne contre la tuberculose en Europe; 
en collaboration avec !'Organisation mondiale d«,:J 
la sante. A l'avenir, cette campagne sera plus 
justement du domaine de la seule Organisation 
mondiale de la sante. 

Mlle WITTEVEEN (Pays-Bas) fait observer que 
Ia delegation des Pays-Bas a expose entierement 
sa maniere de voir a la conference de l'UNEsCO 
tenue a Mexico. Elle estime que !'UNESCO risque 
de disperser ses efforts. L'UNESCO a entrepris un 
grand nombre de projets dont certains ne sont pas 
urgents et auraient pu etre laisses de cote pour 
plus tard. Beaucoup de pays n'ont guere les 
moyens de depenser les devises etrangerefi. que 
demande !'UNESCO et nombreux sont ceux -
comme le professeur Huxley l'a deja fait remar
quer - qui ont de la difficulte a. fournir le per-:
sonnel competent que necessitent les nombreux 
projets. 

L'UNESCO devrait consacrer son activite aux 
questions essentielles pour la realisation des buts 
des Nations Unies, et elle devrait etablir des 
priorites pour les projets, en collaboration avec 
!'Organisation des Nations Unies et les institu-: 
tions specialisees, sans oublier certaines organisa
tioJ;J.s non gouvernementales telles que le Bureau 
international de !'education, a Geneve. 

La delegation des Pays~Bas estime, avec le 
representant des Etats-Uri.is, qu'il dewait.y avoit 

354 



tween the regional offices of the Food and Agricul
ture Organization and the regional commissions 
of the United Nations. ' · 

Mr. ARuTIUNIAN (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) regretted that only five of the specia
lized agencies had submitted reports to the 
Council. According to the agreements, they 
should all have submitted reports. , 
· The Agreement with the International ·Bank 

for Reconstruction and ·Development required the 
Bank to send copies of its annual reports to the 
United . Nations, and even spoke of quarterly 
reports. The International Monetary Fund had 
analogous obligations. The Bank and the Fund 
must. surely have prepared annual reports for 
1947. Yet the Economic and Social Council had 
not received them, although some other organ 
of the United Nations might have done so. At 
the General Assembly he had noted a tendency 
to remove the Bank and the Fund from the pur
view of the United Nations. The specialized 
agencies should. fulfil the minimum requirements 
of the agreements. 

He did not wish to make a formal proposal on 
the matter, but he would request that· reports 
should be provided by all the specialized agencies 
before the next session of the Council. 

The PRESIDENT pointed out that the Agree
ments with the Bank and the Fund had only come 
into force in November 1947, after they had been 
approved by the Gener~l Assembly. They would 
therefore not apply retroactively to annual reports 
for 1947, which had been prepared in September 
1947. There was no reason to suppose that the 
appropriate reports would not be forthcoming 
in the future. The quarterly financial statements 
referred to by the U.S.S.R. representative were 
being received by the Secretary-General in accor
dance with the agreements. 

Quoting the Secretariat's Economic Report,1 

Mr. ARUTIUNIAN (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub
lics) observed that, except for the part concerning 
the International Monetary Fund, the sections 
of part IV : " International Action in the Economic 
Field", dealing with the specialized.agencies, had 
been prepared by the agencies themselves. He 
would suggest thatjn future the Secr:etariat should 
itself report on the activities of the specialized 
agencies. It was important to know what the 
Secretariat thought of the agencies. · 

Mr. Ariltiunian .said he would not dwell long 
on the report of the International Labour Orga
nisation (E /586, E /586 /Add.1 and E /586 /Add.2). 
The U.S.S.R.'s views on that subject were already 
known. · The Soviet Union considered that the 
International Labour Organisation responded to 
the interests of the employers' and the ruling 
classes, not of the workers. The representation 
of workers was only 25 per cent, a fact which w;1s 
reflected in the organization's activities. 

Finally, the U.S.S.R. delegation had two formal 
proposals to make, one with regard to the World 

1 Economic Report-Salient Features of the World 
Economic Situation 1945-1947 (United Nations Publica
tions> Sales No .. : 1948.II.C.1). 

nne collaboration plus ·etroite entre les bureaux 
regionaux . de !'Organisation pour !'alimentation 
et !'agriculture et les commissions regionales des 
Nations Unies. 

M. AROUTIOUNIAN (Union des Republiques 
socialistes sovietiques) regrette que ci~q institu
tions specialisees seulement aient ,presente leur. 
rapport au Conseil. Aux termes des accords,. elles 
auraient toutes dtl en presenter un. · 

L'accord conclu avec la Banque internationale 
pour la reconstruction et le developpement stipule 
que celle-ci doit envoyer des exemplaires de ses 
rapports annuels a .!'Organisation des Nations 
Unies et parle ineme de rapports trimestriels. LEi 
Fonds monetaire international a des obligations 
analogues. La Banque et le Fonds ont certaine:., 
ment etabli des rapports annuels pour. 1947: 
Cependant, le Conseil ecoriomique et so~ial ne 
les a pas re~;us, tandis que quelque autre organe 
des Nations Unies a pules obtenir. A l'Assemblee 
generale, M. Aroutiounian a constate nne ten
dance a soustraire la Banque et le Fonds a Ia 
competence des Nations Unies. Les institutions 
specialisees doivent satisfaire aux e:Xigences 
minima des accords. · · 

II n'entend pas presenter ,nne proposition, 
formelle a ce sujet, mais il demande que toutes_ 
les institutions specialisees presentent nil rapport 
avant la prochaine session du Conseil. ·, 

Le PRJ~:SIDENT fait remarquer que les accords 
conclus avec la Banque et le Fonds ne sont entres 
en vigueur qu'en novembre 1947, apres leur 
approbation par l'Assemblee generale. lis ne s'ap
pliquent done pas retroactivement aux rapports 
anmiels de 1947; qui ont ete etablis en septembre 
1947; II n'y a pas lieu de supposer que.Ies rapports 
appropries ne parviendront pas a l'avenir. Le8 
exposes financiers tiimestriels auxquels le 'repr~_; 
sentant de l'Union sovietique a fait allusion 
parviennent au Secretaire general, c~nform~ment 
aux accords. 

Citant le Rapport economique du Secr~tariat 1; 

M. ARoUTIOUNIAN (Union des Republiques socia
Iistes sovietiques) fait observer que, sauf pour le 
Fonds monetaire international, les sections de la 
quatrieme partie ·----: « Action internatiomi.Ie dans 
le domaine econoniique )) - traitant des ,institu
tions specialisees, ont ete etablies par les institu~ 
tions elles-memes. II suggere qu'a l'avenir ·1e 
Secretariat rende lui-meme compte de· l'activi:te· 
des institutions specialisees. II est important de· 
savoir ce que le Secretariat pense des institutions. 

M. Aroutiounian n~ s'etendra pas sur le r~pport 
de !'Organisation internationale du Tr.avail (E /586, 
E /586 /Add.1 et E /586 /Add.2). · Les vues. de 
l'U.R.S.S. au sujet de cette organisation sont deja 
connues. L'Union sovietique estime qu'elle repond 
aux interets des eniployeurs et des classes diri., 
geantes et non . a ceuX des ouvriers . .La. represen:
tation des ouvriers n'est que de 25 pourcent, et 
ce fait se reflete dans l'activite de !'organisation .. 

Enfin, Ia delegation de l'U.R.S.S. a deux propo"-, 
sitions formelles a presenter, l'une au sujet de l'Or...; 

1 Rapport economique - Aspects caracteristiques de la 
situation economique mondiale, 1945-1947 (Publication des 
Nations Unies- Numero de vente: 1948, II.C.1)~: . 

355 

_j 



Health Organization (E /711) and the other with 
regard to the International Civil Aviation Organ
ization (E 1680). 

Potentially, WHO was a most useful agency, 
and the U.S.S.R. would like to see its work ex
panded. His comments on it would not be in 
the nature of accusations but of constructive 
criticism. The World Health Organization should 
unit!') with itself all other regional international 
organizations Of a similar nature, such as the Pan
American Sanitary Bureau. 

The World Health Organization's publications 
were so impor~ant that its activity in that field 
should be further developed. It was of especial 
importance that some countries should be able 
to profit by the medical experience of others. He 
"!lnderstood that· hitherto restriction had been · 
~ue to budgetary necessities. 

The World Health Organization's expert com
mittee had not lived up to expectations, perhaps 
also because of lack of funds. Its work should 
be increased to the maximum. Individual coun
tries interested in particular aspects of that work 
could be asked to bear part of the expense. A 
similar procedure could be adopted with regard 
to the WHO missions of lecturers and inspectors. 

Although its· budget was small, WHO had head
quarters both in New Yorkand in Geneva. That 
dualism was historically explicable, but not justi
fiable. The U.S.S.R. believed that the organiza
tion should be concentrated in Geneva. 

Mr. Arutiu:O:ian recalled that he had pointed 
out at the General Assembly that the agreement 
with the International Civil Aviation Organiza
tion . was conditional on the exclusion ·of Franco 
Spain from membership. At the time of the 
General Assembly, ICAO had not had time to 
expel Spain. Many months had. elapsed since 
then. Yet, according to the ICAO report (E /456 f 
Add;lfRev.l), Spain was still a member of the 
organization. 'He would move. that the Council 
should take no decision on the ICAO report and 
should call the attention of ICAO to the fact that 
it had not met the General Assembly's require
ments. He would further request the Secretary
General to report to the Council at its seventh 
session on IC-KO's implementation of the General 
Assembly resolutions. 

According to its report, ICAO was assisting 
Greece to build aerodromes. Another specialized 
agency, FAO, :was sending agricultural missions 
to .Greece. · The specialized agencies should be 
cautious in approaching any question in which 
Greece was concerned. Otherwise, they might . 
discredit themselves and increase the international 
implications of the Greek situation. 

Dr. CALDERONE (Interim Commission of the 
World Health Organization) expressed his organ-

ganisation mondiale de la sante (Ei/711), l'autre, 
de !'Organisation de I' aviation civile internationale 
(E/680). i 

L'OMS est une institution extremement utile 
en puissance, et l'U.R.S.S. voudrait)ui voir eten
dre le champ de ses operations. Les' observations 
que M. Aroutiounian se propose ::de presenter 
n'auront pas le caractere d'accusations, mais 
celui de critiques ccinstructives. L'Organisation 
mondiale de la sante devrait s'unir a d'autres 
organisations internationales regionales de meme 
nature, telles que le Bureau sanitaire paname
ricain (Pan-American Sanitary Bureau). 

Les publications de !'Organisation mondiale 
de la sante sont tellement impq:rtantes qu'il 
convient de developper davantage l'activite de 
!'Organisation dans ce domaine. II importe tout 
particulierement que certains pays ·puissent pro
titer de !'experience acquise par les autres en 
matiere de medecine. M. ARoUTIOUNIAN croit com
prendre que les restrictions auxquelles l'OMS a 
ete assujettie jusqu'ici sont dues a des necessites 
d'ordre budgetaire. 

Le Comite d'experts de !'Organisation mondiale 
de la sante n'a pas donne tout ce qu'on attendait 
de lui, peut-etre egalement faute de ressources 
financieres. L'activite du comite doit etre poussee 
au maximum. On pourrait demander a chacun des 
pays qui s'interessent a des aspects particuliers 
de cette activite de prendre a leur charge une 
partie des frais. On pourrait peut:.etre adopter 
la meme procedure en ce qui concerne les confe-' 
renders ~t les inspecteurs envoyes en mission par 
l'OMS. 

Bien que son budget soit reduit, l'OMS a deux 
sieges, l'un a New-York et !'autre a Geneve. Ce 
dualisme peut s'expliquer par l'histoire de !'orga
nisation, mais il ne se justifie plus. L'U.R.S.S. 
estime que dans l'avenir il conviendrait de concen
trer !'organisation a Geneve. 

M. Aroutiounian rappelle qu•a: .l'Assemblee 
generale, il a fait remarquer que .J'accord avec 
!'Organisation de !'aviation civile internationale 
etait accepte sous reserve de !'exclusion de l'Es
pagne franquiste. Au moment de I' Assemblee 
generale, l'OACI n'avait pas encore eu le temps 
d'expulser l'Espagne. Plusieurs mois se sont 
ecoules depuis lors. Cependant, d'apres le rap
port de l'OACI (E /456 /Add.l jRev.l), l'Espagne 
fait toujours partie de cette organisation. M. Arou
tiounian proposera que le Conseil ne prenne aucune 
decision sur le rapport de l'OACI et qu'il avertisse 
cette derniere qu'elle n'a pas satisfait a la condi_. 
tion posee par l' Assemblee generale. En outre, 
M. Aroutiounian demande que le Secretaire 
gem)ral fasse rapport au Conseil, a sa septieme 
session, sur la mise en reuvre des resolutions de . 
l'Assemblee generale par l'OACI. 

Selon le rapport de l'OACI, cette derniere aide 
la Grece a construire des aerodromes. Une autre 
institution specialisee, la FAO, envoie actuellement 
des missions agricoles en Grece. Les institutions 
specialis~es doivent agir avec circonspection a 
l'egard de toutes questions interessant la Grece. 
Sinon, elles risqueraient de se discrediter et 
d'accroitre les difficultes internationales ton
chant la situation en Grece. 

Le. Dr CALDERONE (Commission interimaire 
de !'Organisation mondiale de la sante).exprime les 

356 



ization's gratitude for the interest that the 
United Nations, and particularly the Economic 
and Social Council, had shown in its work. 

It should always be borne in mind that the 
organization was still an interim organization, 
with a limited budget and limited personnel. 
Only twenty-two of the member States had so far 
deposited their ratifications of the Constitution. 

Up to date the organization was insolvent. By 
the end of the year it would owe the United Na
tions $U.S. 2,800,000. It had received $U .S.3 
million from UNRRA, but in spending that fund 
it had to act as agent for UNRRA and therefore 
it was limited in its power to use the money for 
purposes such as publications. Nevertheless, 
10 per cent of the total budget of the World Health 
Organization in 1949 would be devoted to publica
tions. 

Referring to other specific comments, Dr. Cal
derone welcomed the United States representa
tive's observations. The World Health Organiza
tion had already made agreements with other 
international health organizations, including the 
Pan-American Sanitary Bureau. Those agree
ments, however, could not come into force until 
WHO was formally constituted. 

He agreed with the comments of the United 
States and Brazilian representatives concerning 
co-operation with UNICEF. The World Health 
Organization was co-ordinating its work with 
that of the Fund not only with regard to tuber
culosis, but also with regard to venereal disease 
and child welfare. 

Replying to Mr. Arutiunian, Dr. Calderone 
regretted that it had not been possible for the 
organization to assemble all of the reports from 
its expert comm~ttees in time. The organiza
tion's report to the Council had been written in 
November, and many of the experts' reports had 
only come in since then. Among them were the 
report of the Committee on Revision of Interna
tional Lists, which was being circulated to govern
ments for comments, and the report of the Expert 
Committee on the Unification of Pharmacopoeias. 
The latter report had been completed only on 
18 December 1947. 

The Pan-American Sanitary Bureau had agreed 
in 1947 to integrate its work with that of WHO. 
The agreement would be ready for the World 
Health Assembly in June 1948. 

With regard to missions of lecturers and experts, 
Dr. Calderone pointed out that an interim com
mission could not itself decide how such missions 
should be financed. In that matter, too, it was 
still operating under UNRRA regulations. 

The term " headquarters " had been applied 
to the New York office of WHO, but in fact there 
were only thirty persons working there. The 
greater part of the staff, some one hundred per
sons, was working at Geneva. The ultimate site 
of the organization was not a matter for the 
Interim Commission to decide. All it could do 
was to make studies of cost and other factors, 

remerciements de son organisation pour l'interet 
que !'Organisation des Nations Unies, et plus 
particulierement le Conseil economique et social, 
ont manifeste pour ses travaux. 

II ne faut pas oublier que !'Organisation mon
diale de la sante n'est encore qu'une organisation 
interimaire et qu'elle ne dispose que d'un budget 
et d'un personnel limites. Jusqu'ici, vingt-deux 
Etats Membres seulement ont depose leurs ratifi
cations de la Constitution de I' OMS. 

A ce jour, !'organisation est en deficit. A la fin 
de l'exercice en cours, elle devra 2.800.000 dollars 
a !'Organisation des Nations Unies. Elle a rec;u 
3 millions de dollars de l'UNRRA, mais, pour uti
liser cette somme, elle doit agir en tant qu'agent 
de l'UNRRA, ce qui exclut la possibilite d'em
ployer ces fonds a d'autres objets, tels que les 
publications. Neanmoins, 10 pour cent du budget 
total de !'Organisation mondiale de la sante pour 
1949 seront consacres aux publications. 

Se referant a d'autres observations particu
lieres, le Dr Calderone est heureux de celles 
qu'a faites le representant des Etats-Unis. L'Or
ganisation mondiale de la sante a deja conclu 
des accords avec d'autres organisations interna
tionales de la sante, y compris le Bureau sanitaire 
panamericain. Toutefois, ces accords ne peuvent 
entrer en vigueur tant que l'OMS ne sera pas 
formellement constituee. 

Le Dr Calderone est d'accord avec le represen
tant des Etats-Unis et le representant du Bresil 
au sujet de la cooperation avec le Fonds inter
national de secours a l'enfance. L'Organisation 
mondiale de la sante coordonne son activite avec 
celle du Fonds, non seulement au sujet de la tuber
culose, mais aussi en ce qui concerne les maladies 
veneriennes et la protection de I' enfance. 

Repondant a M. Aroutiounian, le Dr Calde
rone regrette que son organisation n'ait ·pu reunir 
a temps tousles rapports de ses comites d'experts. 
Le rapport de !'organisation au Conseil a ete 
redige au mois de novembre, et un grand nombre 
des rapports d'experts ne sont parvenus qu'apres 
cette date. Parmi ces rapports figure le rapport 
du Comite pour la revision de la nomenclature 
internationale, qui est actuellement communique 
aux gouvernements pour qu'ils presentent leurs 
observations, ainsi que le rapport du Comite 
pour !'unification des pharmacopees. Ce dernier 
rapport n'a ete termine que le 18 decembre 1947. 

Le Bureau sanitaire panamericain a decide, 
en 1947, d'integrer ses travaux a ceux de !'Orga
nisation mondiale de la sante. L'accord sera pret 
pour la Conference mondiale de la sante qui doit 
se tenir en juin 1948. 

En ce qui concetne les missions de conferenciers 
et d'experts, le Dr Calderone signale que ce 
n'est pas une Commission interimaire qui peut 
decider de son propre chef du financement de ces 
missions. Dans cette matiere encore, la commission 
doit suivre le reglement de l'UNRRA. 

On a applique le mot cc siege » au bureau de 
l'OMS a New-York, alors qu'en realite il n'y tra
vaille que trente personnes. La majeure partie du 
personnel, soit une centaine de fonctionnaires, 
travaille a Geneve. Ce n'est pas ala Commission 
interimaire de decider quel sera le siege definitif 
de l' organisation. Tout ce qu' elle peut faire, c' est 
de presenter des devis et autres donnees, dont 

357 



some of which would be submitted to the General 
Assembly at its third session. Whether called 
"headquarters" or not, a New York office would 
in any case be necessary, as that office was con
cerned with such important activities .as the fel
lowship programme, the buying of books, and 
public information, as well as liaison with the 
United Nations. 

Mr. KoTSCHNIG (United States of America) 
explained that his delegation had, owing to some 
error, not received and studied the supplementary 
report of UNESCO (E /461 /Add.1). That fact 
should be borne in mind in considering some of 
the remarks made by Mr. Thorp earlier in the 
meeting. 

The meeting rose at 6.10 p.m. 

ONE HUNDRED 
AND SIXTY-FOURTH MEETING 

Held at Lake Success, New York, 
on Friday, 5 March 1948, at 10.30 a.m. 

President : Mr. Charles MALIK (Lebanon) 

89. Reports of the Council NGO Com
lnittee (E/706 and E/710) [concluded] 

The PRESIDENT called attention to the fact 
that the Council NGO Committee had placed 
before the Council a second report (E /710), which 
did not contain any draft resolutions. 

He asked the members of the Council to continue 
the debate on the first report (E J706). 

RESOLUTION C (2) (concluded) 

Mr. ARuTIUNIAN (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) spoke in favour of the amendment to 
draft resolution C (2) proposed by the Polish 
delegation, whereby the Women's Interf.lational 
Democratic Federation and the World Federa
tion of Democratic Youth might be granted 
consultative status in category A. 

The Women's International Democratic Federa
tion with its 81 million members from forty-two 
different countries and the World Federation of 
Democratic Youth, with 48 million members in 
sixty different countries clearly represented a 
larger number of people than other category B 
organizations. 

Moreover, the objectives of the two organiza
tions confirmed the U.S.S.R. view that they be
longed in category A. The Women's Interna
tional Democratic Federation was concerned with 
questions such as the defeat of fascism ; the strug
gle for permanent peace and freedom; the econo
mic, social and legal . aspects of the struggle of 
women to attain equality with men ; child welfare ; 
and racial discrimination. Its activities were 
closely connected with the problems facing the 
Economic and Social Council and its guiding 
principles were those of the United Nations itself. 

certaines seront presentees a I' Assemblee generale 
a sa troisieme session. Qu'on lui donne, ou non, le 
nom de <<siege'>>, de toute fagon il sei:a necessaire 
d'avoir un bureau a New-York, car ce bureau 
s'occupe de certaines questions importantes, 
telles que le programme de bourses universitaires, 
l'achat de livres et !'information, ainsi que de la 
liaison avec !'Organisation des Nations Unies. 

M. KoTSCHNIG (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) indique 
que, par suite d'une erreur, sa delegation n'a pas 
re~;u et n'a pas etudie le rapport additionnel de 
!'UNESCO (E /461 JAdd.1) .. II convient de tenir 
compte de cette circonstance dans !'interpretation 
a donner a quelques-unes des observations presen
tees par M. Thorp au cours de la presente seance. 

La seance est levee a 18 h. 10. 

CENT SOIXANTE-QUATRIEME 
SEANCE 

Tenue a Lake Success, New-York, 
le vendredi 5 mars 1948, a 10 h. 30 

President : M. Charles MALIK (Liban) 

89. Rapports du Comite ONG du Conseil 
(E/706 & Corr.1 et E/710) [fin] 

Le PRESIDENT signale que le Conseil est saisi 
par le Comite ONG d'un second rapport (E /710), 
qui ne contient pas de projet de resolution. 

II demande aux membres de poursuivre la 
discussion du premier rapport (E /706). 

RESOLUTION C (2) [fin] 

M. AROUTIOUNIAN (Union des Republiques 
socialistes sovietiques) appuie l'amendement pre
sente par la Pologne au projet de resolution C (2), 
selon lequelle statut consultatif de la categoric A 
serait accorde a la Federation democratique 
internationale des femmes et a la Federation 
mondiale de la jeunesse democratique. 

La Federation democratique internationale des 
femmes, qui compte 81 millions de membres appar
·tenant a quarante-deux pays differents, . et hi 
Federation mondiale de la jeunesse democratique, 
comprenant 48 millions de membres dans soixante 
pays differents, representent nettement un plus 
grand nombre de personnes que les autres orga
nisations de la categoric B. 

En outre, les buts vises par ces deux organisa
tions confirment la delegation de l'U.R.S.S. dans 
son opinion qu'elles doivent etre placees dans la 
categoric A. La Federation democratique inter
nationale des femmes s'occupe de questions telles 
que la defaite du fascisme, la lutte pour une paix 
et une liberte stables, les aspects economiques, 
sociaux et juridiques de la lutte que menent les 
femmes pour obtenir des droits egaux a CCU:J( des 
hommes, la protection de l'enfance et les discri
minations fondees sur les differences d~ races. Ses 
activites sont etroitement liees aux problemes 

358 


